ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. 	 The Circuit Court erred by refusing to enforce the GEICO policy's clear and 
unambiguous $20,000 limit of liability for Underinsured Motorists Bodily Injury 
Liability insurance coverage applicable to one person injured in one accident, where the 
policy covers two vehicles, provides a multi-car discount, and contains anti-stacking 
language, and one insured was injured in one accident by the joint negligence of two 
underinsured motorists. 

2. 	 The Circuit Court erred when it found that the $20,000 "each person" UIM liability limit 
contained in the GEICO policy does not limit GEICO's liability to $20,000 when the 
insured is injured by multiple underinsured tortfeasors. 

3. 	 The Circuit Court erred when it found that Paragraph 4 of the Limits of Liability portion 
of the UIM amendment to the GEICO policy (i.e., the "coverage afforded to two or more 
autos" paragraph) allows for stacking ofUIM coverages for bodily injury. 

4. 	 The Circuit Court erred by finding that the GEICO policy is ambiguous in its definition 
of a $20,000 limit of liability for Underinsured Motorists Bodily Injury Liability 
insurance coverage regarding damages to one person injured in one accident. 
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


I. The Accident and Resulting Lawsuit 

On August 21, 2008, Robert Keith Sayre was a guest passenger in a motor vehicle being 

driven by Richard Ryan Smith. (AR 201) 1 Mr. Smith's vehicle collided with a motor vehicle 

being driven by Kurtis Barnett. (AR 201-202) Robert Keith Sayre died in the accident. (AR 

202) 

Steve Sayre filed a wrongful death lawsuit in his individual capacity and as the 

Administrator of the Estate of Robert Keith Sayre against the estate ofMr. Smith (who also died 

in the accident) and Mr. Barnett. (AR 200-217) There is no dispute that the damages 

recoverable in the Sayre wrongful death claim exceeded the sum of the liability insurance policy 

limits under the policies that insured the vehicles being driven by Mr. Smith and Mr. Barnett. 

(AR221) 

II. The GEICO Insurance Policy 

GEICO issued Policy Number 4032-46-39-13 to Steve Sayre in January of 2008. (AR 

79) Its policy period ran from February 28, 2008 to August 28, 2008, thereby encompassing the 

date of the accident at issue here. (AR 78) It is undisputed for the purposes of this appeal that 

the decedent, Robert Keith Sayre, qualified as an insured under the GEICO policy. (AR 221) 

The GEICO policy insured two vehicles, a 1992 Jeep and a 2003 Hyundai, neither of 

which was involved in the accident in question. (AR 79) The policy explicitly provided a multi

car discount for insuring two vehicles under the single policy. (AR 79) The GEICO policy 

contains a policy amendment that provides underinsured motorist insurance coverage ("VIM"). 

(AR 74-75) The policy explicitly charged a smaller premium for VIM coverage pertaining to the 

I References in this Brief to the specific pages of the Appendix Record will be made in this manner, with AR 
signifying the Appendix Record, and the number signifying the page number. 
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second of the two vehicles than it charged for VIM coverage as to the first of the two vehicles. 

(AR 79) The declarations page of the GEICO policy shows the following VIM limits of 

liability: 

Bodily Injury Each Person: $20,000 

Bodily Injury Each Occurrence: $40,000 

Property Damage 	 $10,000 

(AR 79) 

The insuring agreement of the UIM amendment to the GEICO policy states, in relevant 

part: 

LOSSES WE PAY 

We will pay damages for bodily injury and property damage which an insured is 
legally entitled to recover from the owner or operator of an underinsured motor 
vehicle. Bodily injury and property damage must be caused by accident and 
result from the ownership, maintenance or use of the underinsured motor vehicle. 

We will pay under this coverage only after the limits of liability under any 
applicable liability policies or bonds have been exhausted by payment of 
judgments or settlements. 

(AR 74) 

This appeal turns on the proper interpretation of the section of the VIM amendment to the 

GEICO policy which defines GEICO's limits of liability to its insureds for VIM benefits. That 

section of the GEICO policy states: 

LIMITS OF LIABILITY 

Regardless of the number of autos or trailers to which this policy applies: 

1. 	 The Vnderinsured Motorists Bodily Injury Liability limit for "each 
person" less any liability coverage available to the insured from the 
tortfeasor or tortfeasors is the maximum we will pay for damages for 
bodily injury, including all derivative claims and any claim for damages 
for care and loss of services, to one person in one accident; 
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2. 	 Subject to the Underinsured Motorists Bodily Injury Liability limit for 
"each person," the Bodily Injury Liability limit for "each accident" less 
any liability coverage available to the insured from the tortfeasor or 
tortfeasors is the maximum we will pay damages for bodily injury, 
including all derivative claims and any claim for damages for care and loss 
of services, to two or more persons in one accident. 

3. 	 The Underinsured Motorists Property Damage Liability limit for "each 
accident" is the maximum we will pay for damage to property resulting 
from one accident. 

4. 	 When coverage is afforded to two or more autos, the limits of liability 
shall apply separately to each auto as stated in the Declarations. 

5. 	 If at the time of the accident the insured is occupying an auto insured by 
us, the amount of coverage available to the insured is the limit specified in 
the Declarations for the occupied auto. 

If separate policies with us are in effect for you or any person in your household, 
they may not be combined to increase the limit of liability for a loss. 

(AR 75) 

III. 	 Payment Under The GEICO Insurance Policy 

It is undisputed in this appeal that GEICO promptly paid $20,000 to Mr. Sayre, 

representing the amount that GEICO contends is the proper limit of liability for DIM benefits 

payable under the GEICO policy. (AR 222) 

IV. 	 Procedural History 

GEICO filed this declaratory judgment action on September 16, 2010 in the Circuit Court 

of Jackson County, West Virginia, Judge Nibert presiding. (AR 1~4) Mr. Sayre and OEICO 

eventually filed competing motions for summary judgment on the issue of whether Mr. Sayre 

could collect two separate $20,000 limits of liability from the OEICO policy, rather than the 

single $20,000 limit ofliability that OEICO had already paid to Mr. Sayre. (AR 8-35, 41-81, 95

101, 106-219) On July 12, 2016, Judge Nibert issued an Order which granted Mr. Sayre's 
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motion for swnmary judgment and denied GEICO's motion for summary judgment. (AR 220

238) It is from this Order that GEICO now appeals. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The GEICO insurance policy at issue here was a single auto policy that insured two 

vehicles. It provided a multi-car discount, and the VIM premiums applicable to the second ofthe 

two vehicles were lower than the premiums for the first of the two vehicles. The policy clearly 

defined a $20,000 "each person" limit of GEICO's liability for VIM benefits when one person is 

injured in one accident, and contained appropriate anti-stacking provisions. The decedent in 

question was one person injured in one accident. Therefore, under Russell v. State Auto. Mut. 

Ins. Co., 188 W. Va. 81,422 S.E. 2d 803 (1992) and Linkinoggor v. Nationwide Mut. Ins. Co., 

200 W. Va. 265, 489 S.E. 2d 19 (1997), the stacking of VIM benefits was prohibited under the 

GEICO policy. Nevertheless, the Circuit Court allowed the stacking of two VIM limits of 

liability, thereby doubling GEICO's obligation to pay DIM benefits to this insured. It was error 

for the Circuit Court to do so. 

The Circuit Court attempted to justify the stacking of DIM coverages here by saying that 

the policy failed to adequately prevent stacking when the insured is injured by the concurrent 

negligence of two underinsured motorists. This was factually wrong; the policy does, in fact, 

deal with the possibility of the insured being injured by mUltiple tortfeasors. Moreover, under 

Shamblin v. Nationwide Mut. Ins. Co., 175 W. Va. 337, 332 S.E. 2d 639 (1985), the fact that 

multiple tortfeasors caused an accident has no bearing on insurance policy limits; a single 

accident triggers a single limit of liability under an insurance policy. 

The Circuit Court also attempted to justify the stacking of DIM coverages here by saying 

that a portion of the Limits of Liability section of the VIM amendment to the GEICO policy 

5 




applies the limits of liability separately to each auto insured under the policy, so (according to 

the Circuit Court's flawed logic) the limits applicable to each auto insured under the policy can 

be combined to provide double limits for a single loss. Payne v. Weston, 195 W. Va. 502,466 

S.E. 2d 161 (1995) shows that this is not the proper way to interpret the significance of the 

language in question. Payne shows that the language in question merely clarifies that, for each 

auto insured under the policy that is actually involved in a loss, the limits for that auto apply to 

that auto. This language actually serves as an additional anti-stacking provision, not a stacking 

enabling provision, according to Payne. Since no autos that are insured under the GEICO policy 

were involved in the loss at issue here, the language is irrelevant for the instant analysis. 

The Circuit Court also cited the two arguments above (multiple underinsured motorists, 

limits applying separately to each auto insured under the GEICO policy) as its basis for finding 

the GEICO policy's Limits of Liability provisions regarding UIM coverage to be ambiguous. 

There is no ambiguity here. The UIM portion of the GEICO policy clearly and unambiguously 

defines a UIM policy limit of $20,000 for a single insured injured in a single accident. The case 

law regarding stacking has made it more than clear that, under West Virginia law, an insurance 

company that insures multiple vehicles under a single insurance policy has the right to prohibit 

the stacking of insurance coverages. GEICO clearly and unambiguously prohibited stacking in 

the insurance policy at issue here. The Circuit Court's decision to allow stacking, which doubled 

GEICO's UIM benefits obligation to this insured, was clear error and should be reversed. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Oral argument is necessary in this matter because the criteria outlined in Rule 18(a) of the 

West Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure do not render oral argument unnecessary: No party 

has waived oral argument, this appeal is not frivolous, the parties disagree as to whether the 
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dispositive issues have been authoritatively decided, and this Court's decisional process would 

benefit from oral argument. 

Oral argument should take place pursuant to Rule 19 of the West Virginia Rules of 

Appellate Procedure, as opposed to Rule 20, because this case involves the application of settled 

law to a particular insurance policy and a set of operative facts that are not in dispute. 

A memorandum decision is probably not appropriate in this matter. GEICO is seeking 

reversal, and according to Rule 21(d) of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure, a 

memorandum decision reversing the decision of a Circuit Court should only be issued in limited 

circumstances. 

ARGUMENT 

This appeal seeks reversal of an order granting summary judgment, and denying 

summary judgment, to opposing parties in an insurance coverage dispute. Typically, this Court 

will apply a plenary review to the entry of summary judgment. Syl. pt. 1, Painter v. Peavy, 192 

W.Va. 189,451 S.E.2d 755 (1994). Such is the appropriate standard of review in this matter. 

I. 	 The Circuit Court erred by refusing to enforce the GEICO policy's clear and 
unambiguous $20,000 limit of liability for Underinsured Motorists Bodily Injury 
Liability insurance coverage applicable to one person injured in one accident, where 
the policy covers two vehicles, provides a multi-car discount, and contains anti
stacking language, and one insured was injured in one accident by the joint 
negligence of two underinsured motorists. 

This case is clearly about the "stacking" of UIM coverage. This Court is no stranger to 

such disputes; it has been deciding cases that deal with the stacking of insurance coverage for 

over thirty years. See Syllabus Point 4 of Shamblin v. Nationwide Mut. Ins. Co., 175 W. Va. 

337, 332 S.E. 2d 639 (1985). This Court's message regarding stacking has been consistent: 

When an insured buys a single automobile insurance policy to insure mUltiple vehicles, an 
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insurance company is allowed to prevent the stacking of insurance coverages through the use of 

appropriate anti-stacking provisions in the insurance policy. 

In Russell v. State Auto. Mut. Ins. Co., 188 W. Va. 81,422 S.E. 2d 803 (1992), this Court 

dealt with precisely the type of case at issue here: the stacking of UIM coverage. Syllabus Point 

5 of Russell states: 

West Virginia Code § 33-6-31 (1992) does not forbid the inclusion and 
application of an anti-stacking provision in an automobile insurance policy where 
a single insurance policy is issued by a single insurer and contains an 
underinsured endorsement even though the policy covers two or more vehicles. 
Under the terms of such a policy, the insured is not entitled to stack the coverages 
of the mUltiple vehicles and may only recover up to the policy limits set forth in 
the single policy endorsement. 

In Russell, Tina Russell was a guest passenger in one of two vehicles involved in a 

collision; she died as a result of injuries she sustained in the accident. Ms. Russell was insured 

under her own automobile insurance policy, and she carried UIM coverage with liability limits of 

$20,000 per person and $40,000 per occurrence. Ms. Russell insured two vehicles under her 

own policy, and she received a multi-car discount on her premium in exchange for insuring two 

vehicles under one policy. 

In addition to clearly defining the limits of liability as $20,000 per person and $40,000 

per occurrence, Ms. Russell's policy contained the following language: 

[T]he limit of liability applicable to Uninsured Motorists Coverage or 
Underinsured Motorists Coverage is the most we will pay regardless of the 
number of: 1) 'Insureds'[;] 2) Claims made; 3) Vehicles or premiums shown in 

the Schedule or in the Declarations; or 4) Vehicles involved in the accident. 


Russell, 188 W. Va. at 83, 422 S.E. 2d at 805. 


Ms. Russell's estate sought two separate $20,000 UIM limits of liability from the 


insurance company, rather than the single UIM limit defined in the policy. In other words, Ms. 

Russell's estate sought the stacking of UIM insurance coverages, based on the fact that Ms. 
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Russell insured two vehicles under her insurance policy. This Court ruled that such stacking of 

VIM coverage was clearly and unambiguously prohibited by the terms of the insurance policy. 

This Court analyzed the statutory framework for VIM coverage in West Virginia and 

found that W. Va. Code § 33-6-31, the statute that mandates the offer of VIM coverage to 

insureds, does not mandate stacking: 

[I]t is . . . clear that the statutory provision applies to each policy issued in the 
state. The statute does not mandate that the amount of coverage be increased if 
the policy covers multiple vehicles. Further, the pertinent statutory provision 
does not prohibit an insurer from limiting underinsured motorist coverage to the 
limits of bodily injury liability coverage where multiple vehicles are listed on the 
same insurance policy. 

Russell, 188 W. Va. at 83-84, 422 S.E. 2d at 805-806. 

This Court found in Russell that the existence of a single policy insuring multiple 

vehicles, to which a multi-car discount on the premium had been applied, made it obvious and 

clear that the insured had only purchased a single VIM limit ofliability, not two: 

[T]he reason a single policy was issued rather than multiple policies was that the 
premium for underinsured motorist coverage on the second vehicle was set at a 
lesser rate than the premium for the first vehicle. Furthermore, because of the 
multi-car discount given, it is obvious that the insured appellee bargained for only 
one policy and only one underinsurance motorist coverage endorsement. This 
multi-car discount is of particular import since it signifies that the respondent was 
receiving a reduced rate on his automobile insurance in return for taking out only 
one policy instead of two. Meanwhile, the insurer was assuming an increased risk 
of injury which could occur while the insured was occupying the second vehicle 
as consideration for the second premium. The insured was therefore receiving the 
benefit of that which he bargained for and should not receive more. 

Russell, 188 W. Va. at 85, 422 S.E. 2d at 807. 

This Court's ruling in Russell was clear: When an insured purchases a single insurance 

policy to insure two vehicles, receives a multi-car discount on the premium, and chooses to buy 

VIM coverage as part of that single insurance policy, the insured only gets one VIM 
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endorsement, not two UIM endorsements. Only one policy limit is triggered by a UIM claim, 

not two. 

The anti-stacking language in an insurance policy need not be as detailed or 

comprehensive as the language at issue in the Russell case; this Court has found much simpler 

language to clearly and unambiguously prohibit stacking of UIM coverages. In Linkinoggor v. 

Nationwide Mut. Ins. Co., 200 W. Va. 265, 489 S.E. 2d 19 (1997), a woman named Allison 

Linkinoggor was a guest passenger in a vehicle involved in a single vehicle collision. Both Ms. 

Linkinoggor and the driver were killed in the accident. Ms. Linkinoggor was insured under a 

Nationwide policy. That policy provided UIM benefits, and the policy insured a total of four 

vehicles. This Court found that the UIM coverages could not be stacked. In other words, only a 

single UIM limit ofliability applied to Ms. Linkinoggor's death, not four separate UIM limits. 

This Court found the following anti-stacking language contained in the Linkinoggor 

policy to be clear and unambiguous: 

The insuring of more than one person or vehicle under this policy does not 

increase our Underinsured Motorists payment limits. 


Linkinoggor, 200 W. Va. at 269, 489 S.E. 2d at 23. 


The decision of the Circuit Court in the instant matter cannot logically be reconciled with 


this Court's decisions in the Russell and Linkinoggor cases. Here, Mr. Sayre purchased an 

automobile insurance policy from GEICO. He insured two vehicles under a single policy. (AR 

79) He received a multi-car discount for insuring two vehicles under the one policy, and the 

UIM premiums charged on the second of the two vehicles were lower than the UIM premiums 

charged on the first of the two vehicles. (AR 79) The declarations page of the GEICO policy 

clearly and unambiguously shows an "each person" limit of liability for UIM benefits of 
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$20,000. (AR 79) The relevant anti-stacking language shown in the UIM amendment to the 

GEICO policy states: 

LIMITS OF LIABILITY 

Regardless of the number of autos or trailers to which this policy applies: 

1. 	 The Underinsured Motorists Bodily Injury Liability limit for "each 
person" less any liability coverage available to the insured from the 
tortfeasor or tortfeasors is the maximum we will pay for damages for 
bodily injury, including all derivative claims and any claim for damages 
for care and loss of services, to one person in one accident[.] 

(AR 75) 

Robert Keith Sayre, the decedent in question, was (obviously) one person. He died in 

one accident. All of the relevant factors show that, under the Russell and Linkinoggor cases, the 

GEICO policy is clear and unambiguous in defining the $20,000 "each person" policy limit for 

UIM benefits payable under the policy, and in prohibiting the very type of stacking that the 

Circuit Court allowed. The Circuit Court committed clear error, and should be reversed. 

This case should be resolved based on this first Assignment of Error. The remaining 

Assignments of Error focus on the specific errors of the Circuit Court that led the Circuit Court 

to misapply the GEICO policy. 

II. 	 The Circuit Court erred when it found that the $20,000 "each person" VIM liability 
limit contained in the GElCO policy does not limit GEICO's liability to $20,000 
when the insured is injured by mUltiple underinsured tortfeasors. 

The Circuit Court found, erroneously, that the GEICO policy does not "specifically limit 

liability based upon the number ofunderinsured motorists involved in a crash." (AR 232, 236) 

This was plain error for several reasons. 

First, it is factually wrong. The GEICO policy's operative limit of liability provision 

states: 
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LIMITS OF LIABILITY 


Regardless of the number of autos or trailers to which this policy applies:

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