STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


Petitioner's brief appears to be an accurate statement of the case, with one 

exception. In the first paragraph of page 2, Petitioner states that Mr. Smith's vehicle 

collided with a motor vehicle being driven by Kurtis Barnett, citing AR 201-202. These 

facts do not appear on AR 201-202, and they were not alleged in Respondent's 

Complaint filed hereinbelow. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The decision of the circuit court should be affirmed. The circuit court properly 

concluded that limiting language of the UIM Amendment to the GEICO policy, drafted 

by the Petitioner, was ambiguous as a matter of law, because it was reasonably 

susceptible to different meanings or of such doubtful meaning that reasonable minds 

might be uncertain or disagree as to its meaning. (AR 236-237). Syl. pt. 1, Prete v. 

Merchants Prop. Ins. Co. of Indiana, 159 W.Va. 508,223 S.E.2d 441 (1976). 

Respondent had the foresight to purchase optional underinsured motorist (UlM) 

coverage from Petitioner on each of the two autos he owned. The UIM Amendment to 

the GEICO Policy drafted by Petitioner includes inter alia the following limiting 

language: "4. When coverage is afforded to two or more autos, the limits of liability 

shall apply separately to each auto as stated in the Declarations." (AR 75) (hereinafter 

referred to as Limitation No.4). Respondent's claim arose from the wrongful death of 

his teenage son, Robert Sayre. Respondent's son was not occupying either vehicle 

insured by Petitioner. Instead, he was a guest passenger in a vehicle operated by Richard 

Ryan Smith. The automobile accident, however, arose from the negligence of two 
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underinsured motorists/tortfeasors, independently operating separate underinsured motor 

vehicles. The circuit court correctly concluded that language of the aforesaid Limitation 

No. 4 was reasonably susceptible to the interpretation that Respondent could recover the 

$20,000 "per person" UIM benefits on each of his two insured autos, because each of the 

two underinsured motorists/tortfeasors had separately activated the UIM coverage. 

The circuit court also correctly included that Respondent's claim for the $20,000 

"per person" benefits on each auto was consistent with the spirit and intent of the West 

Virginia underinsured motorist statute of full compensation. In State Auto. Mut. Ins. Co. 

v. Youler, 183 W.Va. 556, 564, 396 S.E.2d 737, 745 (1990), this Court recognized that" 

the [West Virginia] [L]egislature has articulated a public policy of full indemnification or 

compensation underlying both uninsured or underinsured motorist coverage in the State 

of West Virginia. That is, the preeminent public policy of this state in uninsured or 

underinsured motorist cases is that the injured persons be fully compensated for his or her 

damages not compensated by a negligent tortfeasor, up to the limits of the uninsured or 

underinsured motorist coverage." 

The circuit court correctly rejected Petitioner's argument that Limitation No. 1 

clearly and unambiguously restricted Respondent to a single "per person" limit, 

regardless of the number of underinsured motorists/tortfeasors causing his damages. 

Relying on the rules of construction recognized by this Court in Payne v. Weston, 195 

W.Va. 502,507,466 S.E.2d 161, 166 (1995) (citing Syl. pt. 1, West Virginia Ins. Co. v. 

Lambert, 193 W.Va. 681,458 S.E.2d 774 (1995» (It[w]here a provision of an insurance 

policy is ambiguous, it is construed against the drafter, especially when dealing with 

exceptions and words of limitation. It), the circuit court concluded that ambiguities in the 
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limiting language of the GEICO Policy should be construed against Petitioner. The 

circuit also correctly noted that, while West Virginia Code § 33-6-31(k) allows 

"[i]nsurers [to] incorporate such terms, conditions and exclusions in an automobile 

insurance policy as may be consistent with the premium charged, [it is only permissible] 

so long as any such exclusions do not conflict with the spirit and intent of the uninsured 

and underinsured motorists statutes". Syl. Pt. 3, Deel v. Sweeney, 181 W.Va. 460, 383 

S.E.2d 92 (1989). Syl. Pt. 5, Cunningham v. Hill, 226 W.Va. 180,698 S.E.2d 944 (2010). 

This Court has warned that it "will be vigilant in holding the insurers' feet to the 

fire in instances where [terms, conditions and] exclusions or denials of coverage strike at 

the heart of the purposes of the uninsured and underinsured motorist statutes provisions." 

Id., at 463, 383 S.E.2d at 95. Accord, Syl. Pt. 1, Thomas v. Nationwide Mut. Ins. Co., 

188 W.Va. 640,425 S.E.2d 595 (1992); Mitchell v. Broadnax, 208 W.Va. 36, 537 S.E.2d 

882 (2000); American States Ins. Co. v. Tanner, 211 W.Va. 160,563 S.E.2d 825 (2002). 

This Court has also held that '" [t]he mere fact that parties do not agree to the construction 

of a contract does not render it ambiguous. The question as to whether a contract is 

ambiguous is a question of law to be determined by the court.' Syllabus Point 1, 

Berkeley Co. Pub. Servo V. Vitro Corp., 152 W.Va. 252, 162 S.E.2d 189 (1968)." 

Syllabus Point 4, Mylan Labs. Inc. V. Am. Motorists Ins. Co., 226 W.Va. 307, 700 

S.E.2d 518 (2010). 

The circuit court's ruling should be upheld because it upholds the objective of the 

West Virginia Underinsured Motorist Statute, W. Va. Code 33-6-31 (b): "to pay the 

insured all sums which he shall legally be entitled to recover as damages." "The purpose 

of optional underinsured motorist statute is to enable the insured to protect himself, if he 
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choses to do so, against losses occasioned by the negligence of other drivers who are 

underinsured. Deel v. Sweeney, 181 W.Va. 460, 463, 383 S.E.2d 92, 95 (1989). The 

statute "is remedial in nature and, therefore, must be construed liberally in order to effect 

its purpose." SyI. Pt. 7, in part, Perkins v. Doe, 177 W.Va. 84, 350 S.E.2d 711 (1986); 

Mitchell v. Broadnax, 208 W.Va. 36, 537 S.E.2d 882 (2000). 

"A circuit's count's entry of summary judgment is reviewed de novo." Syllabus 

Point 1, Painter v. Peavv, 192 W.Va. 189,451 S.E.2d 755 (1994). 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Respondent agrees with Petitioner's statement regarding oral argument and 

decision. 

ARGUMENT 

The West Virginia Underinsured Motorist Statute 

The West Virginia underinsured motorist statute is found in West Virginia Code § 

33-6-31 (b), and it provides, in pertinent part, that a motor vehicle "policy or contract 

shall provide an option to the insured with appropriately adjusted premiums to pay the 

insured all sums which he shall legally be entitled to recover as damages from the owner 

or operator of an uninsured or underinsured motor vehicle ... without setoff against the 

insured's policy or any other policy." (emphasis added). This Court articulated the 

purpose of the underinsured motorist statute in Horace Mann Ins. Co. v. Adkins, 215 

W.Va. 297,302-303,599 S.E.2d 720, 725-726 (2004), as follows: 
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DIM coverage is intended to provide excess coverage to 
compensate an insured against losses for which there would 
otherwise be no coverage. "The purpose of optional 
underinsured motorist coverage is to enable the insured to 
protect himself, if he chooses to do so, against losses 
occasioned by the negligence of other drivers who are 
underinsured." Deel v. Sweeney, 181 W.Va. 460, 463, 
383 S.E.2d 92, 95 (1989). In other words, 
"[ u ]nderinsurance coverage ... is in the nature of excess 
coverage. It is not intended to be liability insurance." 
Castle v. Williamson, 192 W.Va. at 647,453 S.E.2d at 630. 
See also Syl. pt. 4, in part, State ex reI. Allstate Ins. Co. v. 
Karl, 190 W.Va. 176, 437 S.E.2d 749 (1993) ("An 
underinsured motorist carrier occupies the position of an 
excess or additional insurer in regard to the tortfeasor's 
liability carrier, which is deemed to have the primary 
coverage."). 

(emphasis added). 

West Virginia's public policy underlining underinsured motorist coverage is full 

indemnification or compensation. This Court recognized the preeminent public policy 

concerns of the West Virginia Legislature in prior decisions. In State Auto. Mut. Ins. Co. 

v. Youler, 183 W.Va. 556,396 S.E.2d 737 (1990): 

the legislature has articulated a public policy of full 
indemnification or compensation underlying both 
uninsured or underinsured motorist coverage in the State of 
West Virginia. That is, the preeminent public policy of 
this state in uninsured or underinsured motorist cases is 
that the injured persons be fully compensated for his or 
her damages not compensated by a negligent tortfeasor, 
up to the limits of the uninsured or underinsured motorist 
coverage. 

183 W.Va. at 564, 396 S.E.2d at 745. (emphasis added). Likewise, in Pristavec v. 

Westfield Insurance Company, 184 W.Va. 331,400 S.E.2d 575 (1990), this Court held: 

" . . . in light of the preeminent public policy of the 
underinsured motorist statute, which is to provide full 
compensation, not exceeding coverage limits, to an 
injured person for his or her damages not compensated 
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by a negligent tortfeasor, this Court holds that 
underinsured motorist coverage is activated under W. 
Va.Code, 33-6-31(b), as amended when the amount of such 
tortfeasor's motor vehicle liability insurance actually 
available to the injured person in question is less than the 
total amount of damages sustained by the injured person, 
regardless of the comparison between such liability 
insurance limits actually available and the underinsured 
motorist coverage limits." 

184 W.Va. at 338, 400 S.E.2d at 582. (emphasis added). 

The purpose and underlying public policy of the West Virginia underinsured 

motorist statute warrants application thereof in such a manner so as to protect the insured 

"against losses occasioned by the negligence of other driver~ who are underinsured" and 

to provide full indemnification or compensation to the injured party. (See, Horace Mann 

Ins. Co. v. Adkins, supra (citing Deel v. Sweeney, supra). (emphasis added». The 

underinsured motorist insurance carrier actually occupies the position of an excess or 

additional insurer in regard to the tortfeasor's liability carrier, which is deemed to have 

the primary coverage. State ex reI. Allstate Ins. Co. v. Karl, supra. This Court has also 

recognized that W. Va. Code § 33-6-31 "is remedial in nature and, therefore, must be 

construed liberally in order to effect its purpose." (emphasis added). Syl. Pt. 7, in part, 

Perkins v. Doe, 177 W.Va. 84,350 S.E.2d 711 (1986); Mitchell v. Broadnax, 208 W.Va. 

36,537 S.E.2d 882 (2000). 

Response to Assignment ofError No. 1 ("ambiguous - one person, one accident ") 

The circuit court correctly concluded that Respondent was not limited to a single 

recovery of $20,000 under the UIM Amendment to the GEICO Policy, given the facts of 

this case involving two underinsured motorists/tortfeasors. The circuit court correctly 

concluded that pertinent language in the Limits of Liability section of the DIM 
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Amendment is ambiguous, being reasonably susceptible to different interpretations or of 

such doubtful meaning that reasonable minds might be uncertain or disagree as to its 

meaning. The circuit court correctly concluded that the limitations drafted by the 

Petitioner did not clearly and unambiguously preclude payment to the Respondent of 

VIM benefits he purchased on two autos, where his damages were caused to by two 

underinsured motorists/tortfeasors independently operating separate underinsured motor 

vehicles. The circuit court correctly concluded that Petitioner's efforts to avoid coverage 

violated the spirit and intent of the West Virginia underinsured motorist statute to provide 

full compensation to an injured party for damages not compensation by a negligent 

tortfeasor. (AR 234-237). 

In and of itself, the underinsured motorist statute is not limiting. In other words, 

the statute itself does not limit payment of VIM benefits to damages caused by only one 

underinsured negligent tortfeasor. The stated objective of the West Virginia underinsured 

motorist statute is "to pay the insured all sums which he shall legally be entitled to 

recover as damages." (emphasis added) W.Va. Code 33-6-31(b), in part. Respondent 

suffered damages caused by two underinsured motorists/tortfeasors, and he seeks full 

compensation from both underinsured motorists. Respondent purchased VIM benefits on 

two autos and the circuit court correctly concluded that each underinsured 

motorist/tortfeasor activated the $20,000 per person limit ofVIM coverage on each auto. 

This is not to say that Petitioner is prohibited from including limiting language in 

its VIM Amendment. In fact, West Virginia Code § 33-6-31(k) specifically allows that 

"[i]nsurers may incorporate such terms conditions and exclusions in an automobile 

insurance policy as may be consistent with the premium charged, so long as any such 
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exclusions do not conflict with the spirit and intent of the uninsured and underinsured 

motorists statutes. SyI. Pt. 3, Deel v. Sweeney, 181 W.Va. 460, 383 S.E.2d 92 (1989)." 

(emphasis added). SyI. Pt. 5, Cunningham v. Hill, 226 W.Va. 180, 698 S.E.2d 944 

(2010). Mindful of the spirit and intent ofW. Va. Code § 33-6-31, this Court has warned 

that it "will be vigilant in holding the insurers' feet to the fire in instances where [terms, 

conditions and] exclusions or denials of coverage strike at the heart of the purposes of the 

uninsured and underinsured motorist statutes provisions." Id., at 463, 383 S.E.2d at 95. 

Accord, SyI. Pt. 1, Thomas v. Nationwide Mut. Ins. Co., 188 W.Va. 640, 425 S.E.2d 595 

(1992); Mitchell v. Broadnax, 208 W.Va. 36, 537 S.E.2d 882 (2000); American States 

Ins. Co. v. Tanner, 211 W.Va. 160,563 S.E.2d 825 (2002). 

Respondent purchased underinsured motorist (UIM) coverage from Petitioner on 

each of the two automobiles he owned and he was charged premiums on both autos. (AR 

128). Petitioner issued a two-page Underinsured Motorists Amendment (West Virginia) 

to Respondent, which was in effect on the date of the fatal accident. (AR 146-147). 

Because Respondent's damages were caused by two underinsured motorists/tortfeasors 

independently operating underinsured motor vehicles, Respondent sought payment of the 

$20,000 per person limit of VIM benefits he purchased on two autos. Respondent 

submits and the circuit court agreed that the coverage on the second auto was triggered 

by a second uninsured motorists/tortfeasor who caused or contributed to the fatal 

accident. Nonetheless, Petitioner refuses to make payment of the UIM benefits 

purchased by Respondent on the second auto. 

Looking first at the insuring provision of the UIM Amendment to the GEICO 

policy, it does appear to meet the purpose and intent of the West Virginia underinsured 
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motorists statute to provide full compensation. See, W.Va. Code 33-6-31(b). The 

insuring provision states that GEICO "will pay damages for bodily injury ... which an 

insured is legally entitled to recover from the owner or operator of an underinsured 

motor vehicle . . . caused by accident and resu1t[ing] from the . . . use of the 

underinsured motor vehicle." CAR 146). Nothing in the insuring provision limited 

Respondent's ability to collect UIM benefits on both autos. 

The applicable Declarations issued to Respondent reveals that he did purchase 

UIM coverage benefits on each of the two vehicles with per person limits of $20,000 

each. CAR 128). Nothing on the Declarations limited Respondent's ability to collect 

UIM benefits on both autos. 

It is undisputed that Respondent's son died as a result of injuries sustained from a 

motor vehicle accident caused by two underinsured motorists/tortfeasors independently 

operating separate underinsured motor vehicles. Respondent contends and the circuit 

court agreed that each underinsured motorists/tortfeasors activated one per person DIM 

benefit on each of Respondent's two insured autos. Petitioner, however, refuses to fully 

compensation Respondent with the DIM benefits on each auto, claiming that it has 

limited to the UIM coverage on one auto only. 

Before the circuit court, Petitioner relied solely upon Limitation No.1 of the 

Limits ofLiability section of the UIM Amendment to avoid payment of the UIM benefits 

purchased by Respondent on his second auto. The Limits ofLiability section of the DIM 

Amendment states: 

LIMITS OF LIABILITY 

Regardless of the number of autos or trailers to which this policy applies: 

1. The Underinsured Motorists Bodily Injury Liability limit 
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for "each person" less any liability coverage available to 
the insured from the tortfeasor or tortfeasors is the 
maximum we will pay for damages for bodily injury, 
including all derivative claims and any claim for damages 
for care and loss of services, to one person in one accident; 

2. 	 Subject to the Underinsured Motorists Bodily Injury 
Liability limit for "each person," the Bodily Injury 
Liability limit for "each accident" less any liability 
coverage available to the insured from the tortfeasor or 
tortfeasors is the maximum we will pay for bodily injury, 
including all derivative claims and any claim for damages 
for care and loss of services, to two or more person in one 
accident.

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